




Parliament House, Macquarie Street, Sydney NSW 2000 AUSTRALIA 
Telephone (02) 9230 2354      

portfoliocommittee7@parliament.nsw.gov.au 

 
24 February 2023  

Our Ref: D23/15601
 
Mr Jeremy Greenwood

 

Dear Mr Greenwood 

Inquiry into allegations of impropriety against agents of The Hills Shire Council and 
property developers in the region

I write in relation to your correspondence, received by secretariat staff on 23 February 2023.
While I acknowledge that you have been engaging with the committee recently by telephone and 
though written correspondence, I note that, to date, you have not agreed to give evidence at a 
public hearing. The committee took the significant step of issuing you with a summons to attend 
and give evidence after it received no response to two written invitations posted to your registered 
business address.  When you declined to attend and give evidence based on the  

 we provided you with an opportunity to appear by videoconference but you 
declined.  If you are indeed willing to co-operate with the inquiry and give evidence at a public 
hearing, I encourage you to make this clear and we will make the necessary arrangements. 
 
In response to your other concerns I note the following: 

 The process servers engaged by the committee are a professional and licenced business 
who routinely serve legal documents on individuals. We have been advised that the agents 
are regulated with the Office of Fair Trading. 
Although there has been considerable media interest in this inquiry, the committee is not 
responsible for the content of any media reports. 

Obviously the birth of a child is a significant event in a person's life. I take this opportunity to 
wish you all the best during this special time and assure you that we have never intended to cause 
distress or harm. The committee has an important role to undertake in examining very serious 
allegations and has given great consideration to every step it has taken.
 
Please advise your availability to attend a hearing by 2.00 pm Monday 27 February 2023. You 
can contact Ms Peta Leemen, Principal Council Officer, on  or via email at 
portfoliocommittee7@parliament.nsw.gov.au.
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Sue Higginson MLC 
Committee Chair

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

 PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 7 – PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT



60 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000 

27 February 2023 

URGENT – BY EMAIL 

Parliamentary Committee No. 7 – Planning and Environment

The Hon Sue Higginson MLC (Chair) 

Dear Ms Higginson, 

Response to your letter of 24 February 2023 

In your letter you state that the committee issued two invitations to my business 
address. I have not received either correspondence you have referred to.  On first 
receipt of any communication that the committee sought my attendance (that is, on 
19 February 2023 I have actively communicated with the committee).  

The allegation that I have failed to co-operate with the committee is simply not true. I 
find it extraordinary that the committee would issue public statements to this effect. 
The committee has imposed on itself unreasonable deadlines which, not just me, but 
many people, have been unable to comply with. 

In my conversation with the secretariat and in subsequent email correspondence I 
informed the committee of my unavailability to attend the committee due to the 
imminent birth of my child. You state in your letter that an opportunity was made to 
appear by video-conference last Thursday. I am sure you can appreciate why I 
declined that invitation considering that date is now my child’s birthday. 

I appreciate your best wishes regarding my child. Regrettably, those wishes are 
diluted by the fear that your agents will unreasonably and unnecessarily attend our 
home and conduct more violence. 

I also cannot agree that great consideration has been given to every step the 
committee has taken. Having been informed of the medical situation in my 
household and having been given a means by which to communicate with me, the 
secretariat could have simply called me and organised a time and place on which to 
serve its documents.  



Instead, it opted to send a private investigator to my house and in doing so caused 
severe stress to my wife.  

 I am sure that is related to the 
incident which occurred only some hours beforehand.  

You have not substantively dealt with what I have informed you of. That is, your 
agent trespassing onto a private residence, refusing to leave when asked, and 
shining a light into the eyes of a heavily pregnant woman. I would expect that you 
would have confirmed whether the conduct occurred and offered an apology, or at 
the very least, undertaken to look into the conduct.  

I am led to believe that since the issuing of your correspondence that the NSW 
Parliament has been dissolved and there is some question on whether the 
committee will continue to sit. I understand from public comment by one committee 
member that it is unclear on whether the committee will continue to sit and conduct 
business. 

I ask that the committee please clarify its position as a matter of urgency.  

I understand that the question of whether a committee may validly sit while 
Parliament was prorogued has previously dealt with when the Keneally Government 
prorogued Parliament three months early.  

At the time the NSW Crown Solicitor issued the following advice, “should the 
committee and sit and purport to exercise powers…it will not be doing so legally. The 
committee will not lawfully be able to exercise power to summon persons (other than 
Members) to attend and give evidence or examine any witnesses under oath”.  

My understanding is that this issue has never been considered and decided by a 
Court and therefore it is legally ambiguous. However, subsequent to 2011 it became 
practice to expressly authorise, in the resolution appointing committees, to permit 
that committee to conduct business while Parliament is prorogued. There is differing 
legal opinions (including from the Crown Solicitor, pre-eminent academics and 
lawyers, and the Clerk of the House), on whether such a resolution is valid. It is 
unclear whether this practice was implemented in the constitution of committee no. 
7.

It is unclear to me whether the committee is sitting validly. I am not concerned about 
the validity of the committee’s power to issue summons. I have previously offered to 
voluntarily appear. However, I am concerned about the protection from defamation 
(and other legal proceedings) that would otherwise be afforded to witnesses. 

I seek the committee’s urgent clarification of this issue. As legal opinions have 
significantly different over the past decade on this question, I would seek an 
indemnity from a person or organisation of substance before agreeing to appear and 



give evidence in these unique circumstances. I believe this is a very reasonable 
request.  

Regards  

Jeremy Greenwood 
















